Greenbook

LBO Analysis of Enacted Budget

Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities

Alexander Moon, Economist September 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Quick look	
Overview	
Agency overview	1
Appropriation summary	2
Major initiatives for the FY 2020-FY 2021 biennium	2
Early Intervention	2
Community transportation	3
Vetoed provisions	3
Analysis of FY 2020-FY 2021 budget	4
Introduction	4
Category 1: Medicaid Services	5
C1:1: Community Medicaid Services	6
Line item descriptions and implications	6
Medicaid waivers	7
Residential facilities	8
Category 2: County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	9
C2:1: Special Olympics (ALI 320411)	9
C2:2: Protective Services (ALI 320412)	9
C2:3: Screening and Early Identification (ALI 322420)	10
C2:4: Part C Early Intervention (ALI 322421)	10

C2:5: Multi System Youth (ALI 322422)	11
C2:6: Family Support Services (ALI 322451)	11
C2:7: Community Program Support (ALI 322502)	12
C2:8: Employment First Initiative (ALI 322508)	12
C2:9: Best Buddies (ALI 322510)	12
C2:10: Supplement Service Trust (ALI 322620)	13
C2:11: Capital Replacement Facilities (ALI 322629)	13
C2:12: Developmental Disabilities Council (ALI 320613)	13
C2:13: Community Social Service Programs (ALI 322612)	14
Early Intervention	14
Category 3: Administration	14
C3:1: Developmental Disabilities Facilities Lease Rental Bond Payments (ALI 320415)	15
C3:2: Medicaid Program Support – State (ALI 653321)	15
C3:3: Central Office Operating Expenses (ALI 320606)	15
C3:4: Medicaid Repayment (ALI 322619)	15
C3:5: Medicaid Program Support (ALI 653627)	16
C3:6: Medicaid Administration and Oversight (ALI 653622)	16
Background information	17
Medicaid programs overview	17
Community-based services	17
Medicaid waivers	17
Individual Options	
Level One	
SELF Targeted case management	
Funding	
Residential facilities	
Developmental centers	
Private intermediate care facilities	

Attachment:

Appropriation Spreadsheet

LBO Greenbook

Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities

Quick look...

- ➤ The Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities (ODODD) is the primary state agency for Ohioans with developmental disabilities (DD). ODODD's mission is to promote comprehensive statewide programs for individuals with developmental disabilities and their families.
- ➤ GRF appropriations for Early Intervention are increased by \$12.3 million in FY 2020 and will be used to, among other things, expand program eligibility to include lead exposure and neonatal abstinence syndrome.
- > Total budget of \$3.32 billion in FY 2020 and \$3.54 billion in FY 2021.
 - The majority of these funds are used for subsidies payments for home and community-based waiver services, residential services, as well as county DD board subsidies.

Fund Group	FY 2018 Actual	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
General Revenue	\$674,344,871	\$680,220,536	\$735,826,663	\$751,961,612
Dedicated Purpose	\$370,243,620	\$416,475,329	\$459,551,788	\$545,507,453
Internal Service Activity	\$19,980,684	\$8,246,354	\$8,719,347	\$9,000,000
Federal	\$1,719,773,108	\$1,786,869,800	\$2,112,400,550	\$2,236,034,036
Total	\$2,784,342,283	\$2,891,812,018	\$3,316,498,348	\$3,542,503,101
% change		3.9%	14.7%	6.8%
GRF % change		0.9%	8.2%	2.2%

Overview

Agency overview

The Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities (ODODD) is the primary state service agency for Ohioans with developmental disabilities. ODODD's mission is to promote comprehensive statewide programs and services – including public education, prevention, diagnosis, treatment, training, and care – for individuals with developmental disabilities and their families wherever they reside in the state. ODODD provides administrative leadership to local authorities in planning and developing community-wide services for individuals with developmental disabilities and their families and also promotes programs of professional training and research in cooperation with other state agencies and institutions of higher learning.

Most of ODODD's budget is used to pay for individuals with developmental disabilities to receive services in residential facilities and in home and community-based settings. ODODD pays for services provided to about 40,000 disabled individuals through three home and community-based Medicaid waiver programs. ODODD pays 450 private intermediate care facilities (ICFs) to provide residential Medicaid services to individuals with developmental disabilities. ODODD also provides services to about 650 severely disabled individuals at regional developmental centers throughout the state. In addition, ODODD provides subsidies to, and oversight of, Ohio's 88 county boards of developmental disabilities (DD). County DD boards provide a variety of community-based services including residential support, early intervention, family support, adult vocational and employment services, and service and support administration. Over 90,000 people receive services through county DD boards.

Appropriation summary

The budget provides a total appropriation of \$3.32 billion in FY 2020 and \$3.54 billion in FY 2021. The table shown in the "Quick look" section presents the enacted appropriations by fund group. Federal funds account for the largest portion (63.4%) of ODODD's budget. Federal funds in ODODD's budget are primarily federal Medicaid reimbursements for expenditures for services provided to Medicaid recipients. ODODD receives federal Medicaid reimbursement for payments made for home and community-based waiver services, services provided in developmental centers, payments to private ICFs, and targeted case management services.

GRF dollars account for the next largest share (21.7%) of the enacted budget. Most GRF dollars are used as the Medicaid state share for home and community-based waiver services, services provided in developmental centers, and payments to private ICFs. GRF dollars are also used to distribute subsidies to county DD boards.

Dedicated Purpose Fund (DPF) dollars account for the next largest share of recommended appropriations at 14.7%. DPF funds come from a variety of sources and include the following: funds from county DD boards to pay a portion of the nonfederal share for waiver services, revenue from a fee that county DD boards pay to ODODD based on the value of Medicaid waiver claims paid by the board, and a transfer of intermediate care facilities/individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID) franchise fees. Internal Service Activity funds account for the remaining 0.3% of ODODD's budget and include revenue generated from leasing land or space at a developmental center or service payments for some private residents.

Major initiatives for the FY 2020-FY 2021 biennium

Early Intervention

In H.B. 166, the Early Intervention (EI) Program receives an additional \$12.3 million in GRF in FY 2020, bringing the total GRF appropriation to \$23.2 million in FY 2020 and \$23.3 million in FY 2021. In addition to GRF, federal funds and local dollars are expended on the program as well. EI is a statewide system that provides coordinated services to parents of infants and toddlers with disabilities or developmental delays. EI funds target children under three years of age who have, or are at risk of having, a developmental delay and their families. The GRF increase will primarily be used to expand program eligibility to include lead exposure and neonatal abstinence syndrome. ODODD anticipates an additional 1,000 children with lead

exposure and 2,000 children with neonatal abstinence syndrome could receive services as a result.

Community transportation

H.B. 166 will provide resources to modernize community transportation capabilities, shifting from a model of large vehicles moving large groups to one of smaller vehicles and person-centric transportation. This model will allow ODODD to more efficiently meet the needs of people with disabilities, and give them increased flexibility to travel to work and activities within the community. In FY 2020, the increase associated with this modernization is anticipated to cost \$11.25 million (\$4.20 million nonfederal share). In FY 2021, the total increase is anticipated to cost \$15.00 million (\$5.60 million nonfederal share).

Vetoed provisions

The Governor vetoed a provision that would have set the hourly Medicaid rate for homemaker/personal care services provided under an ODODD-administered waiver at \$12.82 for the second half of FY 2020 and the first half of FY 2021 and \$13.23 for the second half of FY 2021.

_

¹ According to ODODD's website, the rate will increase to these amounts on the dates listed above. In addition, the onsite, on-call direct service provider reimbursement rate will increase from \$6.09 to \$8.55. Accessed here – https://dodd.ohio.gov/wps/portal/gov/dodd/about-us/communication/news/news-dodd-fy1920-budget.

Analysis of FY 2020-FY 2021 budget

Introduction

This section provides an analysis of the funding for each appropriation line item (ALI) in ODODD's budget. For organizational purposes, these ALIs are grouped into three major categories based on their funding purposes. The analysis for an ALI with a lower category or subcategory designation will appear before that for an ALI with a higher category or subcategory designation. That is, the analysis for an ALI with a category designation of C1:8 will appear before the analysis for an ALI with a category designation of C1:3 will appear before the analysis for an ALI with a category designation of C1:8.

To aid the reader in locating each ALI in the analysis, the following table shows the category in which each ALI has been placed, listing the ALIs in order within their respective fund groups and funds. This is the same order the ALIs appear in the ODODD section of the budget bill.

In the analysis, each appropriation item's expenditures for FY 2019 and appropriations for FY 2020 and FY 2021 are listed in a table. Following the table, a narrative describes how the appropriation is used and any changes affecting the appropriation. If the appropriation is earmarked, the earmarks are listed and described.

Categorization of DDD's Appropriation Line Items for Analysis of FY 2020-FY 2021 Enacted Budget					
Fund	ALI	ALI Name	ALI Name Category		
Genera	ıl Revenue F	und Group			
GRF	320411	Special Olympics	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	320412	Protective Services	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	320415	Developmental Disabilities Facilities Lease Rental Bond Payments	3	Administration	
GRF	322420	Screening and Early Identification	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	322421	Part C Early Intervention	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	322422	Multi System Youth	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	322451	Family Support Services	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	322502	Community Program Support	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	322508	Employment First Initiative	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	322509	Community Supports & Rental Assistance	1	Medicaid Services	
GRF	322510	Best Buddies Ohio	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services	
GRF	653321	Medicaid Program Support – State	3	Administration	
GRF	653407	Medicaid Services	1	Medicaid Services	

C	Categorization of DDD's Appropriation Line Items for Analysis of FY 2020-FY 2021 Enacted Budget						
Fund	ALI	ALI Name		Category			
Dedicated Purpose Fund Group							
5GE0	320606	Central Office Operating Expenses	3	Administration			
5QM0	320607	System Transformation Supports	1	Medicaid Services			
2210	322620	Supplemental Service Trust	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services			
5DK0	322629	Capital Replacement Facilities	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services			
5H00	322619	Medicaid Repayment	3	Administration			
4890	653632	Developmental Centers Direct Care Services	1	Medicaid Services			
5EV0	653627	Medicaid Program Support	3	Administration			
5GE0	653606	ICF/IID and Waiver Match	1	Medicaid Services			
5S20	653622	Medicaid Administration and Oversight	3	Administration			
5Z10	653624	County Board Waiver Match	1	Medicaid Services			
Interna	ıl Service Ad	tivity Fund Group					
1520	653609	DC and Residential Facilities Operating Services	1	Medicaid Services			
Federa	l Fund Grou	р					
3250	322612	Community Social Service Programs	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services			
3A40	653654	Medicaid Services	1	Medicaid Services			
3A40	653655	Medicaid Support	1	Medicaid Services			
3A50	320613	Developmental Disabilities Council	2	County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services			

Category 1: Medicaid Services

This category of appropriation line items includes the major sources of funding for Medicaid waivers, developmental centers, and ICFs/IID, and targeted case management services. Medicaid services provided to eligible individuals are reimbursed by the federal government. The federal government reimburses allowable expenditures based on a state's federal medical assistance percentage (FMAP) rate, which is determined annually by the federal government. For federal fiscal year (FFY) 2019, Ohio's FMAP rate is about 63% (for every \$1 spent on Medicaid-eligible services, the federal government reimburses the state about 63¢). The nonfederal share comes from state funds and local funds provided by county DD boards, depending on the service.

C1:1: Community Medicaid Services

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322509, Community Supports and Rental Assistance	\$727,500	\$727,500	\$727,500
% change		0.0%	0.0%
GRF ALI 653407, Medicaid Services	\$584,684,995	\$672,567,500	\$687,978,323
% change		15.0%	2.3%
4890 ALI 653632, Developmental Centers Direct Care Services	\$4,644,034	\$7,000,000	\$7,000,000
% change		50.7%	0.0%
5GE0 ALI 653606, ICF/IID and Waiver Match	\$19,858,228	\$42,000,000	\$60,100,000
% change		111.5%	43.1%
5QM0 ALI 320607, System Transformation Supports	\$831,436	\$250,000	\$100,000
% change		-69.9%	-60.0%
5Z10 ALI 653624, County Board Waiver Match	\$348,076,400	\$362,680,330	\$426,668,369
% change		4.2%	17.6%
1520 ALI 653609, DC and Residential Facilities Operating Services	\$8,246,354	\$8,719,347	\$9,000,000
% change		5.7%	3.2%
3A40 ALI 653654, Medicaid Services	\$1,699,257,885	\$2,015,287,585	\$2,136,179,373
% change		18.6%	6.0%
3A40 ALI 653655, Medicaid Support	\$58,252,637	\$66,915,330	\$69,657,028
% change		14.9%	4.1%

Line item descriptions and implications

GRF line item 322509 is used to provide county DD boards with funding for rental assistance for individuals who are receiving home and community-based services and to former residents of ICFs or developmental centers. The Director of ODODD is required to establish the methodology for determining the amount and distribution of this funding. GRF line item 653407 is used for the state share of Medicaid payments to private ICFs/IID, payments for home and community-based waiver services, and for services to developmental center residents enrolled in Medicaid.

Dedicated Purpose Fund 4890 line item 653632 is used to offset an individual's cost of care in a state developmental center. Cost of care payments made by individuals residing in a developmental center and match for day services paid by the county DD boards are deposited

into Fund 4890 and expended out of this line item. Dedicated Purpose Fund 5GE0 line item 653606 is used for Medicaid payments for private ICF/IID services and home and community-based waiver services. A portion of ICF/IID franchise fees are transferred from the Department of Medicaid to this fund.

Dedicated Purpose Fund 5QM0 line item 320607, System Transformation Supports is used to purchase residential facility beds for the purpose of reducing the number of beds that are certified for participation in Medicaid as ICF/IID beds in Ohio. The line item is also used to fund other system transformation initiatives.

Dedicated Purpose Fund 5Z10 line item 653624 is used to expend the county DD boards' nonfederal share of expenditures for home and community-based Medicaid services. Funds paid by county DD boards for the county's nonfederal share of home and community-based services are deposited into Fund 5Z10.

Internal Service Activity Fund 1520 line item 653609 is used for certain operating expenses at the state's developmental centers. Revenues from the sales of goods and services at the developmental centers are deposited into this fund.

Federal Fund 3A40 line item 653654 is used for Medicaid payments for community-based waiver, targeted case management, ICF/IID, and developmental center services. Federal reimbursements for these services are deposited into this fund.

Federal Fund 3A40 line item 653655 is used to expend the federal share for administrative activities related to Medicaid. Federal reimbursements for administrative services are deposited into this fund.

The total funding dedicated to these services/activities is approximately \$2.72 billion in FY 2019, \$3.18 billion in FY 2020, and \$3.40 billion in FY 2021.² A brief description of the programs/services and the amounts budgeted for each follows. For more detailed background information on ODODD's Medicaid programs, please refer to page 17.

Medicaid waivers

ODODD administers three home and community-based Medicaid waivers: Individual Options (IO), Level One (L1), and Self-Empowerment Life Funding (SELF). The primary goal of these waivers is to enable people with developmental disabilities to remain in their homes or community-based settings by providing them with cost-effective services and support to maximize their quality of life while also ensuring their health and safety. The table below shows the enrollment in FY 2018 and FY 2019, as well as the estimates for FY 2020 and FY 2021.

-

² Some Medicaid administrative funds for central operating expenses are captured in the Administration category.

Table 1. Enrollment Estimates for DD Waivers					
Waiver	FY 2018	FY 2019	FY 2020 Estimate	FY 2021 Estimate	Change FY 2018-FY 2021
Individual Options	22,867	23,368	23,692	23,991	4.9%
Level One	14,718	15,083	15,104	15,239	3.5%
SELF	1,628	1,754	1,821	1,888	16.0%
Total	39,213	40,205	40,617	41,118	4.9%

Table 2 below shows the funding that is anticipated to be used for waiver services in the upcoming biennium. In addition, line item 653407, Medicaid Support, will be used for the administration costs for waiver services.

	Table 2. Line Items Used for Waivers						
Fund	Line Item	FY 2021					
GRF	653407, Medicaid Services	\$408,272,307	\$426,510,053				
5GE0	653606, ICF/IID and Waiver Match	\$14,200,000	\$38,800,000				
3A40 653654, Medicaid Services		\$1,449,991,585	\$1,548,207,104				
5Z10 653624, County Board Waiver Match		\$362,580,330	\$426,668,369				
	Waiver Services Total	\$2,235,044,222	\$2,440,185,526				

Residential facilities

Tables 3 and 4 below show the Medicaid anticipated spending for ICFs and developmental centers in the FY 2020-FY 2021 biennium by line item. In addition, line item 653655, Medicaid Support, will be used for the administration costs for both developmental centers and ICFs.

ICFs provide health care and habilitation services to Medicaid recipients to help their functional status in a residential setting. There are 450 private ICFs. ICFs vary in size with many serving less than 50 individuals, but with a few in the state that serve over 100.

Table 3. Line Items Used for Intermediate Care Facilities						
Fund	d Line Item FY 2020 FY 202					
GRF	653407, Medicaid Services	\$182,991,859	\$182,991,859			
5GE0	653606, ICF/IID and Waiver Match	\$13,717,665	\$21,716,805			
3A40 653654, Medicaid Services		\$334,594,945	\$348,557,995			
	ICFs Total	\$531,304,469	\$553,266,659			

The state's developmental centers provide habilitative environments and residences for individuals with significant or other developmental disabilities. Individuals residing in developmental centers generally have severe-profound disabilities; some have behavioral problems and have had issues with the law. Developmental centers are designed to return individuals, once stabilized, to less intensive living environments within their local communities.

	Table 4. Line Items Used for Developmental Centers					
Fund	Line Item	FY 2020	FY 2021			
GRF	653407, Medicaid Services	\$81,303,334	\$78,476,411			
1520	653609, DC and Residential Operating Services	\$8,719,347	\$9,000,000			
4890	653632, Developmental Centers Direct Care Services	\$7,000,000	\$7,000,000			
3A40	653654, Medicaid Services	\$103,145,176	\$106,133,925			
	Developmental Centers Total	\$200,167,857	\$200,610,336			

Category 2: County Subsidies, Grants, and Other Services

This category of appropriation line items includes the major sources of funding for services provided by county DD boards as well as grants and other services.

C2:1: Special Olympics (ALI 320411)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 320411, Special Olympics		\$100,000	\$100,000	\$100,000
	% change		0.0%	0.0%

This line item is distributed to the Special Olympics of Ohio.

C2:2: Protective Services (ALI 320412)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 320412, Protective Services		\$2,381,923	\$2,381,923	\$2,381,923
	% change		0.0%	0.0%

This line item is used for costs associated with guardianships, trusteeships, and protectorships for persons with developmental disabilities. ODODD contracts with Advocacy and Protective Service, Inc. (APSI), a nonprofit organization, that advocates for individuals with developmental disabilities, for these services. As guardians, APSI is appointed by a county probate court and makes decisions about medical care and providers, among other things. As a trustee, APSI assists individuals with financial matters.

C2:3: Screening and Early	Identification	(ALI 32242	20)
---------------------------	-----------------------	------------	-----

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322420, Screening and Early Identification	\$335,452	\$300,000	\$300,000
% change		-10.6%	0.0%

This line item is used for professional and program development related to early identification/screening and intervention for children with autism and other complex developmental disabilities and their families.

C2:4: Part C Early Intervention (ALI 322421)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322421, Part C Early Intervention		\$10,914,869	\$23,236,369	\$23,302,224
	% change		112.9%	0.3%

This line item is used to support the administration of Ohio's Early Intervention Services Program. Early Intervention (EI) is a statewide system that provides coordinated services to parents of infants and toddlers with disabilities or developmental delays. This line item is used to meet maintenance of effort (MOE) requirements. The MOE is equal to the total amount of state and local funds spent for EI in the most recent year for which data is available. Federal funds for the program are expended out of Federal Fund 3250 line item 322612, Community Social Service, and amount to approximately \$15.5 million per fiscal year. There are also local dollars for the program as well.

El funds target children under three years of age who have or are at risk of having a developmental delay and their families. Funds are provided to local family and children first councils. The councils provide service coordination, evaluation, and assessment. Funds are also used to contract for direct services. All eligible infants and toddlers are offered a multi-disciplinary assessment to determine their need for early intervention services. There are two ways in which a child is determined eligible for EI. The first way is that the child has a diagnosed condition with a high probability of resulting in a developmental delay or disability. This delay or disability is measured by appropriate diagnostic instruments and procedures, in one or more of the following areas: cognitive development; physical development, including vision and hearing; communication development; social or emotional development; and/or adaptive development. The second is that the child has a diagnosed developmental delay of at least a 1.5 standard deviation below the mean in at least one developmental domain or the referred child is determined eligible by informed clinical opinion. Examples of diagnosed conditions with a high probability of developmental delay include chromosomal abnormalities, genetic or congenital disorders, severe sensory impairment, inborn errors of metabolism, disorders reflecting disturbance of nervous system development, disorders secondary to exposure to toxic substances, and severe attachment disorders.

Part C of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) governs EI services. This law mandates the following services: comprehensive developmental evaluation and assessment; service coordination; family support; procedural safeguards; individual family service plan (IFSP) development, assessment, and evaluation; and transition services.

H.B. 166 of the 133rd earmarks \$750,000 in each fiscal year from the line item and requires the funds to be used to contract with Ohio's sight centers in Cleveland, Cincinnati, and northwest Ohio to provide early intervention services and family support for children under the age of three with blindness or low vision.

The increase (112.9% in FY 2020) in this line item will primarily be used to expand program eligibility to include lead exposure and neonatal abstinence syndrome. ODODD anticipates an additional 1,000 children with lead exposure and 2,000 children with neonatal abstinence syndrome could be eligible as a result.

C2:5: Multi System Youth (ALI 322422)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322422, Multi System Youth		\$1,289,400	\$1,000,000	\$1,000,000
	% change		-22.4%	0.0%

This line item is used to address youth with complex needs who are served by multiple state systems. Individuals with the following circumstances are identified and provided with resources and supports: adjudicated youth and families, at risk for not achieving developmental milestones, health and safety issues, entering the criminal justice system, medical conditions, and need for academic supports. Funds are distributed to grant awardees for respite services.

C2:6: Family Support Services (ALI 322451)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322451, Family Support Services		\$5,843,767	\$5,843,767	\$5,843,767
	% change		0.0%	0.0%

This line item is used for the Family Support Services Program, which provides support for families caring for an individual with developmental disabilities at home. Supports include respite care, adaptive equipment, home modifications, special diet planning, and other services and items that are customized to meet the needs of the family. The funds are distributed to county DD boards in quarterly installments and allocated according to a formula developed by ODODD, in consultation with representatives of county boards. H.B. 166 specifies that not more than 7% of a board's subsidy can be used for administrative costs.

Funds may also be used to distribute funds to county boards for the purpose of addressing economic hardships and to promote efficiency of operations.

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322502, Community Program Support	\$0	\$25,000	\$25,000
% change		N/A	0.0%

This new line item will be distributed to the Halom House, Inc.

C2:8: Employment First Initiative (ALI 322508)

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322508, Employment First Initiative	\$2,723,103	\$2,747,327	\$2,730,015
% change		0.9%	-0.6%

This line item is used to fund an initiative with the Opportunities for Ohioans with Disabilities Agency (OOD) and to develop a long-term system for placing individuals with developmental disabilities in community employment. The goal of the initiative is to increase employment opportunities for individuals with developmental disabilities.

OOD and ODODD established an interagency agreement to expand employment services for working-age adults with developmental disabilities. The statewide Employment First initiative supports job seekers to transition from facility-based work and nonwork settings (sheltered workshops, enclaves, adult day support programs, or residential settings) to competitive integrated employment. Thirty OOD vocational rehabilitation (VR) counselors work with local county boards of DD to identify and provide VR services to eligible individuals served. Developmentally disabled-eligible adults are eligible to participate if they: are currently receiving services in nonintegrated settings, express a desire to work in the community, and need support to obtain employment or identify career options and employment opportunities. The partnership provides a full range of individualized VR services designed to meet individuals on their own unique path to employment. VR services may include: job development services to help with job matches and on-the-job supports including job coaching.

C2:9: Best Buddies (ALI 322510)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
GRF ALI 322510, Best Buddies		\$0	\$125,000	\$125,000
	% change		N/A	0.0%

This new line item will be distributed to the Best Buddies Ohio Program to support the delivery and expansion of inclusion services through Ohio colleges and communities.

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
2210 ALI 322620, Supplement Service Trust	\$20,563	\$500,000	\$500,000
% change	·	2,331.6%	0.0%

This line item is used to fund community-based services that are not allowable under Medicaid. Services may include recreational events, travel, vacations, sports, and elective medical or dental care. Dollars from this line item are only expended in cases when an individual with a supplemental service trust dies; 50% of the remaining funds in the individual's trust are paid to ODODD (deposited into Fund 2210), which sends those dollars to the county DD board in the individual's county of origin. The amount of revenue received varies considerably from year to year.

C2:11: Capital Replacement Facilities (ALI 322629)

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
5DKO ALI 322629, Capital Replacement Facilities	\$732,749	\$750,000	\$750,000
% change		2.4%	0.0%

This line item is used to provide financial assistance to county DD boards or nonprofit agencies for the purchase or renovation of community housing for individuals with developmental disabilities. Revenues deposited into Fund 5DKO consist of the prorated portion of financial assistance returned to ODODD upon sale of community facilities.

C2:12: Developmental Disabilities Council (ALI 320613)

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation	
3A50 ALI 320613, Developmental Disabilities Council	\$2,847,532	\$3,200,000	\$3,200,000	
% change		12.4%	0.0%	

This federal line item is used for the Ohio Developmental Disabilities Council (ODDC), which is a planning and advocacy body for community inclusion for people with developmental disabilities. ODDC is part of a national network of state councils and consists of at least 30 members appointed by the Governor. ODDC provides grants to individuals and government agencies in order to expand innovative approaches for supporting individuals with developmental disabilities, educate policymakers about the needs and abilities of such persons, and assist individuals with developmental disabilities with self-determination, employment, outreach, and training. Grants are based on parameters outlined in the Developmental Disabilities Assistance Act and on ODDC's mission to create change that improves independence, productivity, and inclusion for people with developmental disabilities and their families in community life.

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation
3250 ALI 322612, Community Social Service Programs	\$26,511,746	\$26,997,635	\$26,997,635
% change		1.8%	0.0%

C2:13: Community Social Service Programs (ALI 322612)

This line item is used to expend the portion of the federal Social Services Block Grant (SSBG) received by ODODD, EI funds, and possibly other smaller federal grants.

Social Services Block Grant

Each year, the federal government allocates funds to support social services for vulnerable children, adults, and families through the SSBG. In Ohio, the federal SSBG is received by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services, which keeps 72.5% and distributes 14.57% to ODODD and 12.93% to the Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services. ODODD distributes their portion of the grant to county DD boards to supplement the costs of services provided by the boards. These funds are distributed to subrecipients. The target population of these funds include people receiving non-Medicaid services from county DD boards.

States have broad discretion in the specific services they support with SSBG funds and may tailor these funds over time to changes in the needs of their populations. Federal law establishes five broad goals for the SSBG. These include:

- Achieve or maintain economic self-support to prevent, reduce, or eliminate dependency;
- Achieve or maintain self-sufficiency, including reduction or prevention of dependency;
- Prevent or remedy neglect, abuse, or exploitation of children and adults unable to protect their own interests or preserve, rehabilitate, or reunite families;
- Prevent or reduce inappropriate institutional care by providing for community-based care, home-based care, or other forms of less intensive care; and
- Secure referral or admission for institutional care when other forms of care are not appropriate, or providing services to individuals in institutions.

Examples of activities that may be supported include: early intervention, employment, protection services, nonmedical transportation, adult day services, and recreational services.

Early Intervention

This line item also is used to support the administration of Ohio's Early Intervention (EI) Program. State funds for the program are expended out of GRF line item 322421, Early Intervention. The federal allocation for these services is approximately \$15.5 million in each fiscal year. For more information on EI, please refer to page 10.

Category 3: Administration

This category of appropriation line items includes the major sources of funding for ODODD's administrative expenses.

C3:1: Developmental Disabilities Facilities Lease Rental Bond Payments (ALI 320415)

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation	
GRF ALI 320415, Developmental Disabilities Facilities Lease Rental Bond Payments	\$19,416,483	\$19,695,400	\$20,369,000	
% change		1.4%	3.4%	

This line item is used to make debt service payments on bonds issued for long-term capital construction projects related to developmental disabilities service facilities.

C3:2: Medicaid Program Support – State (ALI 653321)

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation	
GRF ALI 653321, Medicaid Program Support – State	\$7,074,250	\$7,076,877	\$7,078,860	
% change		0.0%	0.0%	

This line item is used to support Central Office operating expenses, including personal services, maintenance, supplies, and equipment needed to carry out ODODD's mission and ensure compliance with state and federal laws.

C3:3: Central Office Operating Expenses (ALI 320606)

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation	
5GE0 ALI 320606, Central Office Operating Expenses	\$13,961,863	\$18,501,132	\$20,501,132	
% change		32.5%	10.8%	

This line item is used for Central Office Operating Expenses, including payroll and information technology. In addition, \$100,000 each year in FY 2020 and FY 2021 is to be provided to the Ohio Center for Autism and Low Incidence to establish a lifespan autism hub to support families and professionals. This amount was earmarked for the same purpose in FY 2018 and in FY 2019.

C3:4: Medicaid Repayment (ALI 322619)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation	
5H00 ALI 322619, Medicaid Repayment		\$1,495,854	\$900,000	\$900,000	
	% change		-39.8%	0.0%	

This line item is used to pay the Department of Medicaid the federal portion of collections of overpayments to Medicaid providers.

C3:5: Medicaid Program Support (ALI 653627)

Fund/ALI	FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation	
5EVO ALI 653627, Medicaid Program Support	\$1,445,374	\$1,750,000	\$1,750,000	
% change	e	21.1%	0.0%	

This line item is used for operating the supported living provider certification program and for licensing and inspecting residential facilities. This line item is also used for expenses for trainings where ODODD charges a fee for attendance, as well as to transfer Medicaid fees to the Department of Medicaid.

C3:6: Medicaid Administration and Oversight (ALI 653622)

Fund/ALI		FY 2019 Actual	FY 2020 Appropriation	FY 2021 Appropriation	
5S20 ALI 653622, Medicaid Administration and Oversight		\$25,408,829	\$25,220,326	\$27,237,952	
	% change		-0.7%	8.0%	

This line item is used for Medicaid administration and oversight including staff, systems, and other resources dedicated to eligibility determinations, training, fiscal management, claims processing, quality assurance, and other such duties identified by ODODD.

Background information

Medicaid programs overview

The funding provided for Medicaid Services and Administration is described under Category 1 on page 5. The information below provides more detail about these services/activities.

Community-based services

Medicaid waivers

As mentioned previously, ODODD administers three home and community-based Medicaid waivers: Individual Options (IO), Level One (L1), and Self-Empowerment Life Funding (SELF). The primary goal of these waivers is to enable people with developmental disabilities to remain in their homes or in community-based settings by providing them with cost-effective services and support to maximize their quality of life while also ensuring their health and safety. These services also aim to increase individuals' skills, competencies, and self-reliance. County DD boards are responsible for recommending the approval or denial of waiver services, approving and developing individual service plans, providing assistance in finding qualified providers, contracting with providers, monitoring quality assurance, and protecting the health and safety of their clients.

Table 5 below provides data for FY 2019 on enrollees and expenditures for each waiver.

Table 5. ODODD Waivers, FY 2019*								
Waiver	Enrollees	Expenditures	Average Cost Per Enrollee					
Individual Options	23,368	\$1,678,892,697	\$71,846					
Level One	15,083	\$169,498,124	\$11,238					
SELF	1,754	\$22,905,341	\$13,059					
Total	40,205	\$1,871,296,163						

^{*}Represents the average monthly number of enrollees. Local match for county board day services and targeted case management is not included.

Individual Options

The IO waiver allows the state to provide an array of home and community-based services that assist Medicaid beneficiaries to live in the community and avoid institutionalization. The average cost of the IO waiver, in the aggregate, may not exceed the average cost of care in an intermediate care facility (ICF). IO waiver services include homemaker and personal care, transportation, nutrition, social work, home-delivered meals, respite care, adult day services, supported employment, adult foster care, remote monitoring and equipment, adult family living, and specialized medical, adaptive, assistive equipment, and supplies. IO waiver recipients are responsible for costs associated with room and board (e.g., rent, utilities, food, etc.). In FY 2019, the IO waiver had a monthly average caseload of 23,368 with total expenditures of \$1.68 billion.

Level One

The L1 waiver is designed to support individuals who, with a small amount of services, can stay at home and avoid more costly residential options. L1 waiver services include homemaker/personal care services, transportation, supported employment, adult day services, and specialized medical, adaptive, and assistive equipment and supplies. This waiver has a \$5,325 annual cost cap for most services. In FY 2019, the L1 waiver had a monthly average caseload of 15,083 and total expenditures of \$169.5 million.

SELF

The SELF waiver is designed to allow individuals to direct where and how they receive services. Authorized services include support brokerage, functional behavioral assessment, psychological services, remote monitoring and equipment, adult day services, participant/family stability assistance, community inclusion, and participant-directed goods and services. The cost caps are \$25,000 per year for those under 22 and \$40,000 per year for those 22 and over. In FY 2019, the SELF waiver had a monthly average caseload of 1,754 with total expenditures of \$22.9 million.

Targeted case management

Targeted case management refers to services provided by county DD boards that assist individuals with developmental disabilities in accessing the needed medical, social, educational, or other services. Case managers assist consumers in accessing the necessary services and supports that help increase an individual's skills, competencies, and self-reliance through the development of an individualized service plan. County DD boards, along with ODODD, monitor service providers to ensure that services are being provided in a manner consistent with standards established in state statute and administrative rule.

Funding

Under the Medicaid Program, the federal government reimburses allowable expenditures based on a state's federal medical assistance percentage (FMAP). The Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, determines the FMAP rate annually. For FFY 2019, Ohio's FMAP rate is about 63% (for every \$1 spent on Medicaid-eligible services, the federal government reimburses the state about 63¢). Administrative costs for Medicaid-related programs are generally reimbursed at 50%.

The nonfederal share for waivers and targeted case management is paid from state GRF and non-GRF funds. Non-GRF funds are mainly supported by funds from county DD boards. County DD boards are responsible for providing a portion of the nonfederal share of the home and community-based Medicaid waiver costs, which can be paid for using state subsidy dollars or local resources, such as levy dollars. Over the past couple of biennia, the state has invested in additional state-funded waivers.

Residential facilities

Developmental centers

Developmental centers provide habilitative environments and residences for individuals with significant or other developmental disabilities. Individuals residing in developmental centers generally have severe-profound disabilities; some have behavioral problems and have had issues with the law. Developmental centers are designed to return individuals to less intensive living environments within their local communities.

ODODD operates eight developmental centers located regionally throughout the state. Currently, the state's developmental centers have an estimated census of 634 individuals. Table 6 below shows each of the state's developmental centers' census and the centers' staffing levels as of January 2019 compared with figures for two years prior. Two developmental centers, Montgomery and Youngstown, closed at the end of FY 2017.

Table 6. Center Resident and Staffing Census, 2017 and 2019							
Dovolonmental		Residents			Staff		
Developmental Center	January 2017	January 2019	% Change	January 2017	January 2019	% Change	
Cambridge	69	53	-23%	201	208	3%	
Columbus	108	112	4%	286	286	0%	
Gallipolis	55	57	4%	179	187	4%	
Mount Vernon	76	72	-5%	235	237	1%	
Northwest	74	72	-3%	231	212	-8%	
Southwest	99	103	4%	217	242	12%	
Tiffin	86	71	-17%	205	230	12%	
Warrensville	88	94	7%	317	333	5%	
Total	655	634	-3%	1,871	1,935	3%	

The state's eight developmental centers are mainly funded with state GRF dollars and federal Medicaid reimbursement; resident resources account for a small percentage of funding. In FY 2018, ODODD expended about \$175.9 million for services provided in developmental centers.

Private intermediate care facilities

Private ICFs provide health care and habilitation services to Medicaid recipients with developmental disabilities to help their functional status in a residential setting. There are approximately 450 private ICFs in the state that provide services to about 5,000 individuals. ICFs vary in size with many serving less than 50 individuals, but with a few in the state that serve over 100. ICFs are primarily funded by state dollars and federal Medicaid reimbursement.

DDD/zg

Line Ite	em Detail l	by Agency	FY 2018	FY 2019	Appropriations FY 2020	FY 2019 to FY 2020 % Change	Appropriations FY 2021	FY 2020 to FY 2021 % Change
Repor	t For: Ma	ain Operating Appropriations Bill	Ver	sion: As Ena	cted			
DDD	Departm	nent of Developmental Disabilities						
GRF	320411	Special Olympics	\$ 100,000	\$ 100,000	\$ 100,000	0.00%	\$ 100,000	0.00%
GRF	320412	Protective Services	\$ 2,381,923	\$ 2,381,923	\$ 2,381,923	0.00%	\$ 2,381,923	0.00%
GRF	320415	Developmental Disabilities Facilities Lease Rental Bond Payments	\$ 19,433,287	\$ 19,416,483	\$ 19,695,400	1.44%	\$ 20,369,000	3.42%
GRF	322420	Screening and Early Identification	\$ 482,791	\$ 335,452	\$ 300,000	-10.57%	\$ 300,000	0.00%
GRF	322421	Part C Early Intervention	\$ 11,934,115	\$ 10,914,869	\$ 23,236,369	112.89%	\$ 23,302,224	0.28%
GRF	322422	Multi System Youth	\$0	\$ 1,289,400	\$ 1,000,000	-22.44%	\$ 1,000,000	0.00%
GRF	322451	Family Support Services	\$ 5,843,767	\$ 5,843,767	\$ 5,843,767	0.00%	\$ 5,843,767	0.00%
GRF	322501	County Boards Subsidies	\$ 43,266,294	\$ 43,266,294	\$ 0	-100.00%	\$ 0	N/A
GRF	322502	Community Program Support	\$0	\$0	\$ 25,000	N/A	\$ 25,000	0.00%
GRF	322507	County Board Case Management	\$ 2,450,000	\$ 1,462,500	\$ 0	-100.00%	\$ 0	N/A
GRF	322508	Employment First Initiative	\$ 4,458,925	\$ 2,723,103	\$ 2,747,327	0.89%	\$ 2,730,015	-0.63%
GRF	322509	Community Supports and Rental Assistance	\$ 785,112	\$ 727,500	\$ 727,500	0.00%	\$ 727,500	0.00%
GRF	322510	Best Buddies Ohio	\$0	\$0	\$ 125,000	N/A	\$ 125,000	0.00%
GRF	653321	Medicaid Program Support-State	\$ 7,000,000	\$ 7,074,250	\$ 7,076,877	0.04%	\$ 7,078,860	0.03%
GRF	653407	Medicaid Services	\$ 576,208,657	\$ 584,684,995	\$ 672,567,500	15.03%	\$ 687,978,323	2.29%
Gene	eral Revenue I	Fund Total	\$ 674,344,871	\$ 680,220,536	\$ 735,826,663	8.17%	\$ 751,961,612	2.19%
5GE0	320606	Central Office Operating Expenses	\$ 12,496,991	\$ 13,961,863	\$ 18,501,132	32.51%	\$ 20,501,132	10.81%
5QM0	320607	System Transformation Supports	\$ 1,499,989	\$ 831,436	\$ 250,000	-69.93%	\$ 100,000	-60.00%
2210	322620	Supplement Service Trust	\$0	\$ 20,563	\$ 500,000	2,331.61%	\$ 500,000	0.00%
5DK0	322629	Capital Replacement Facilities	\$0	\$ 732,749	\$ 750,000	2.35%	\$ 750,000	0.00%
5H00	322619	Medicaid Repayment	\$0	\$ 1,495,854	\$ 900,000	-39.83%	\$ 900,000	0.00%
4890	653632	Developmental Centers Direct Care Services	\$ 5,068,761	\$ 4,644,034	\$ 7,000,000	50.73%	\$ 7,000,000	0.00%
5EV0	653627	Medicaid Program Support	\$ 1,500,000	\$ 1,445,374	\$ 1,750,000	21.08%	\$ 1,750,000	0.00%
5GE0	653606	ICF/IID and Waiver Match	\$ 16,684,399	\$ 19,858,228	\$ 42,000,000	111.50%	\$ 60,100,000	43.10%
5S20	653622	Medicaid Administration and Oversight	\$ 20,032,154	\$ 25,408,829	\$ 25,220,326	-0.74%	\$ 27,237,952	8.00%
5Z10	653624	County Board Waiver Match	\$ 312,961,327	\$ 348,076,400	\$ 362,680,330	4.20%	\$ 426,668,369	17.64%
Dedi	cated Purpose	e Fund Group Total	\$ 370,243,620	\$ 416,475,329	\$ 459,551,788	10.34%	\$ 545,507,453	18.70%
1520	653609	DC and Residential Facilities Operating Services	\$ 19,980,684	\$ 8,246,354	\$ 8,719,347	5.74%	\$ 9,000,000	3.22%
		lgot Office of the Legislative Service Commission						

FY 2020 - FY 2021 Final Appropriations

All Fund Groups

Line It	em Detail	by Agency	FY 2018	FY 2019	Appropriations FY 2020	FY 2019 to FY 2020 % Change	Appropriations FY 2021	FY 2020 to FY 2021 % Change
DDD	Department of Developmental Disabilities							
Inte	ernal Service Ac	ctivity Fund Group Total	\$ 19,980,684	\$ 8,246,354	\$ 8,719,347	5.74%	\$ 9,000,000	3.22%
3250	322612	Community Social Service Programs	\$ 24,366,427	\$ 26,511,746	\$ 26,997,635	1.83%	\$ 26,997,635	0.00%
3A40	653604	DC and ICF/IID Program Support	\$ 128,795	\$0	\$0	N/A	\$0	N/A
3A40	653605	DC and Residential Facilities Services and Support	\$ 2,587,525	\$0	\$0	N/A	\$0	N/A
3A40	653654	Medicaid Services	\$ 1,594,601,116	\$ 1,699,257,885	\$ 2,015,287,585	18.60%	\$ 2,136,179,373	6.00%
3A40	653655	Medicaid Support	\$ 54,752,250	\$ 58,252,637	\$ 66,915,330	14.87%	\$ 69,657,028	4.10%
3A50	320613	Developmental Disabilities Council	\$ 2,637,331	\$ 2,847,532	\$ 3,200,000	12.38%	\$ 3,200,000	0.00%
3 G 60	653639	Medicaid Waiver Services	\$ 39,107,411	\$0	\$0	N/A	\$0	N/A
3 G 60	653640	Medicaid Waiver Program Support	\$ 1,592,252	\$0	\$0	N/A	\$0	N/A
Federal Fund Group Total		\$ 1,719,773,108	\$ 1,786,869,800	\$ 2,112,400,550	18.22%	\$ 2,236,034,036	5.85%	
Depart	ment of De	velopmental Disabilities Total	\$ 2,784,342,283	\$ 2,891,812,018	\$ 3,316,498,348	14.69%	\$ 3,542,503,101	6.81%